Zoning Board of Adjustment
Tuesday, September 5, 2017, 6:30 p.m.
City Hall Committee Room
3 Washington Street, 2"* Floor

AGENDA
I Introduction of Board Members
1i. Minutes of the Previous Meeting, June 5, 2017

1I.  Unfinished Business
Hearings:
Petitioner, Leah LaRock requests an extension to decision of approval with conditions dated
July 6, 2015 for property located at 0 Daniels Hill Rd., which is in the Rural Zone. This
approval was to permit the building of a single family dwelling on a lot with 1.76 acres where
a five acre minimum lot size is required per Table 102-791, Basic Zone Dimenstonal
Requirements of the Zoning Code.

ZBA 17-13/ Petitioners, Robert J. Koning and Catherine R. Owen of 250 Summit Rd.,
Keene, requests a Variance for property located at 35 Summit Ridge Dr., Keene, Tax Map
Parcel #918-10-011.0100, which is in the Rural District and owned by the applicants.
Represented by Brickstone Land Use Consultants, LLC of 185 Winchester St., Keene; the
Petitioners requests a Variance to permit a home occupation up to 1,200 sq. ft. in an
accessory building on a lot in the Rural District where a maximum home occupation size of
300 sq. ft. is permitted per Section 102-921 (a) (5) Home Occupation Criteria of the Zoning
Ordinance. The home occupation will be located in an existing barn on a lot to be merged
with 250 Summit Rd. The merged properties will be 15.2 acres in size.

ZBA 17-14/ Petitioners, 256 Investment Associates, of 40 Sawyer Pond Rd., Mirror Lake,
NH, requests a Variance for property located at 329 Winchester St., Keene, Tax Map Parcel
#053-01-021, which is in the Commerce District and owned by the applicants. Represented
by Michael Lussier of Wiley Management, 4 Brimstone Hill Rd., Suite 7 Epsom, NH; the
Petitioners requests a Variance to permit a second menu board per Section 102-1311 of the
Zoning Crdinance.

ZBA 17-15/ Petitioners, Michael Lynch and Jeanette Wright of 150 Meetinghouse Rd.,
Hinsdale, requests a Variance for property located at Grove and Water St., Tax Map Parcel
#028-03-011. Represented by Wendy Pelletier of Cardinal Surveying and Land Planning; the
Petitioners requests a Variance to permit the current open lot to be converted to a commercial
parking lot per Section 102-422 of the Zoning Ordinance.

IV. New Business

VI.  Communications and Miscellaneous
VII.  Non Public Session: (if required)
VIII. Adjournment

Page 1 of 39



This page intentionally left blank

Page 2 of 39



DRAFT

City of Keene
New Hampshire

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
MEETING MINUTES

Monday, June 5, 2017 6:30 PM Council Chambers
Members Present: Staff Present:

Nathaniel Stout, Chair Gary Schneider, Plan Examiner

Jeffrey Stevens, Vice Chair John Rogers, Acting Health Director

Louise Zerba, Alternate
Joshua Gorman
Thomas Plenda

Members Not Present:
John Rab, Alternate

l. Introduction of Board Members

Chair Stout called the meeting to order at 6:32 PM, introduced members of the Board and
welcomed everyone to the meeting.

I1. Minutes of the Previous Meeting

Vice Chair Stevens made a motion to accept the minutes from May 1, 2017. The motion
was seconded by Mr. Gorman, which carried unanimously. Ms. Zerba abstained from
voting since she did not attend the meeting.

V. Hearings

ZBA 17-11/ Petitioner, Albert F. Grauer, Jr., and Lisa S. Grauer of 268 Rowland
Rd., Fairfield, CT, requests a Special Exception for property located at 85
Winchester St, Keene, Tax Map Parcel #048-01-001, which is in the High Density
District and owned by the applicants. The Petitioner requests a Special Exception
from Section 102-422 for use of property as a boardinghouse/lodging house.

Mr. Schneider indicated that the property was located on the corner of Blake Street along
Winchester Street and that the property was located in the High Density Zone. He
explained that the property, back in 1993, was a legal fraternity recognized by Keene
State College (KSC) and the City of Keene. Mr. Schneider said that according to the
definitions in the zoning code a fraternity must be recognized by a college campus. He
said that in 2002 KSC no longer recognized the property as a fraternity and was not a

Page 3 of 39



DRAFT

legal permitted use for this property. Mr. Schneider explained that the owners of the
property at that time went before the ZBA to apply for a Special Exception to become a
lodging house. He noted that the property did not need to be recognized by Keene State
College in order to be a lodging house. Mr. Schneider reported that particular application
was denied by the ZBA.

Mr. Schneider said that the City followed up with the property and since it was no longer
recognized as a fraternity the owners applied for a building permit to convert it back to a
single family home. He reported that the property was now recognized as a single family
home. Mr. Schneider said that the current property owners were appealing to this Board
for a Special Exception.

Co-Chair Stevens asked if there were other lodging houses in the area of the property.
Mr. Schneider replied that there is a lodging house located at 57 Winchester Street.

Chair Stout referred to the application on page two, “New Hampshire law is clear that
since a prior Special Exception application for the property was denied in 2004, the ZBA
must find a material change of circumstances affecting the merits of this new application
in the interest of the doctrine called "administrative finality”’. He said that the Board
could take testimony from the applicant’s attorney or the applicant. Chair Stout explained
that the public hearing would not be open until the Board decided whether or not the
application had demonstrated a substantial change.

Chair Stout recognized Attorney Gary Kinyon, of Bradley & Faulkner PC, at 50
Washington Street, Keene, NH. He stated that he was an attorney representing the
Petitioner. He said that the scope of New Hampshire Law on this issue gives the ZBA a
great amount of discretion to determine what is a substantial change in circumstances. He
said that the petitioner would present evidence to this Board that the circumstances of the
prior application that was denied in 2004, have changed substantially relative to the
ownership of the property and relative to the composition of the neighborhood.

Attorney Kinyon said that the Special Exception application is the same Special
Exception application that was sought and denied in 2004. He noted that nothing has
changed in the law relative to the Special Exception compared to the present time.

Attorney Kinyon reported in 1993 that the property was approved for the use the
petitioner was seeking at the present time. He said that the key distinction in 1993 was
that it was approved as a fraternity house and not as a lodging house. Attorney Kinyon
said that by his reading of the Ordinance there is virtually no difference between a
lodging house in the City and a fraternity or sorority use. He said that the only difference
was the fact that a fraternity or a sorority must be recognized by the college. He said that
the ZBA should consider what was approved in 1993 and asked if he could present the
Board with a copy of the approved decision. Chair Stout explained to Attorney Kinyon
that if a document is submitted on the night of a hearing and the Board does not have the
luxury to absorb the content, the Board might not accept the document. Chair Stout asked
for the Board’s comments. The Board made the decision to accept the document from
Attorney Kinyon.

Page 4 of 39



DRAFT

Attorney Kinyon referred to the application where he mentioned the 1993 approval and
thought that the Board might want to see the actual notice of decision that approved the
fraternity use. He said that there were two relevant provisions about the need for a
sprinkler system on the third floor before the property could be used for up to nine
occupants. He noted that the application before the Board at this meeting was for the
same number of occupants.

Attorney Kinyon said that the fraternity operated from 1993 and at some point lost its
status with the College in 2004. He said that due to the pressures of being compliant with
zoning, the owners of the property made an application for a lodging house. He noted that
the use of a fraternity or a sorority was the exact same use as a lodging house.

Attorney Kinyon then presented Board with the minutes from the ZBA meeting on
January 3, 2005. He said the minutes would give the Board a sense of the issues that were
presented to the ZBA that was relative to the neighbors. He said at that time, the
fraternity was not being a good citizen of the neighborhood or to the College. Attorney
Kinyon noted that there were a lot of complaints about the behavior of the occupants at
the fraternity. Attorney Kinyon said at that same meeting the ZBA voted on the same four
criteria. He said that the application met three of the four conditions but did not meet the
condition that the use would not hurt values of the surrounding properties. He said that
was important because the minutes stated that two or three of the abutters who spoke
against the application were owners of single family homes who occupied their homes.
Attorney Kinyon said that according to the minutes the abutters complained about the
behavior of the fraternity members. He said as a result the ZBA denied the Special
Exception application. He noted that no appeal was taken in 2005 and the application was
filed.

Attorney Kinyon said the owners who bought property from the fraternity owner in 2006,
formally transferred the category of the house from a fraternity to a single family home.
He explained that was when those owners began renting to college students. He said that
the Petitioners purchased the property in 2014 and they did renovations to the property
and continued to rent the property as a single family. Attorney Kinyon said that in 1993
through 2004 the owners legally had an occupancy to house nine and utilized the third
floor of the property. Attorney Kinyon noted that the third floor was not being used by
the Petitioners because it only qualified for occupancy of four as a single family
residence.

He said that this was an unusual situation because what was being done in 1993 was legal
and then with the loss as a designation as a fraternity it then became illegal. Attorney
Kinyon said that the applicants looked at the layout of the property and how the property
is currently being operated. He said that they came to the conclusion that there was no
reason why this property could not be operated safely as a nine occupant lodging house.
He said that the substantial change in circumstances, as stated in the application, is
justified because the use of the property is still student housing. He noted that it was a
completely different type of student housing now compared to the fraternity use in 2004.
Attorney Kinyon explained how the applicants have owned several properties in the area
for approximately fourteen years and have run all of these properties professionally. He

Page 5 of 39



DRAFT

said that they maintain the properties impeccably and do not allow the kind of student
behavior that occurred in 2004. He noted that there was a lodging house located in the
neighborhood at 57 Winchester Street.

Attorney Kinyon used an illustration created made by the Petitioner, Mr. Albert F.
Grauer, to illustrate the difference in the makeup of the neighborhood from 2004 to the
present day. He indicated that in 2004 most of the neighborhood was owner occupied
single family homes. Attorney Kinyon said that with no doubt this would have been a
reason why the owner occupied single family neighbors in the 2004 Special Exception
application were complaining about the fraternities.

Attorney Kinyon then illustrated the area of the property in 2017 that showed the
dominance of student rentals in the neighborhood. He said that there was also more
college ownership of the buildings located along Winchester Street. Chair Stout asked
how the college housing in the illustration was determined. Attorney Kinyon replied that
Mr. Grauer knows most of the properties in the neighborhood and that he did his own
investigations to determine if the property was owner-occupied or being rented to college
students. Attorney Kinyon explained how the area had also changed due to the
construction of Acadia Hall, The Mills and conversion of the former Monadnock
Flooring to student housing. He noted that the neighborhood has become predominately
student housing and for that reason they believe that there is a substantial change in the
circumstances that justifies the application for a lodging house.

Attorney Kinyon said that the only other substantial change was that the property has
been improved since the Grauers purchased the property. He said that the property was
well maintained and that the Grauers take action to properly supervise all of their
properties. He referenced the minutes from 2004 where one of the neighbors said that
there were approximately 60 police calls to the property at that time and that it was
upsetting to neighbors. Attorney Kinyon said that this would not occur based on the
supervision of the Grauers.

Attorney Kinyon asked the Board to find that there is a substantial change and requested
to proceed so the Grauers are able to make a request for a Special Exception.

Mr. Gorman said that he was familiar with the Grauers management style and that it is
fairly efficient. He asked if the Grauers were to be provided with an approval from this
Board, the boardinghouse/lodging house use would carry on with the property regardless
of the owner and that Mr. Grauer may benefit from the financial gain and could then
easily sell the property. Chair Stout said that was irrelevant to the application for a
Special Exception. Mr. Gorman said that it was valid because the whole merit was that
the situation has changed because of the new owners. Chair Stout said that he did agree
with Mr. Gorman and did see Mr. Gorman’s point. Attorney Kinyon said that as a
condition of any Special Exception the petitioner would have to get a license from the
City Council to operate a lodging house. He explained that one of the conditions of
getting that license was an annual inspection and approval by various City departments
relative to the maintenance and upkeep of the property. Attorney Kinyon said that if
approved, the Special Exception would run with the property and not the applicants. He

Page 6 of 39



DRAFT

said that this was a safeguard that would show that any future owner of the property
would have to maintain to a similar level maintenance.

Attorney Kinyon said that relative to the 2004 application the only thing that the ZBA did
find was that the proposed use would hurt values of the surrounding properties. He said
that, had an appraiser looked at the property, the proposed use and composition of the
neighborhood to determine if the proposed lodging house would harm values in the
neighborhood. Attorney Kinyon presented a letter from appraiser, Susan Tierney, Powers,
Smith & Associate, 67 Winter Street Keene, NH. He said that based on Ms. Tierney’s
research and her confirmation about the change in the composition of the neighborhood
there would not be a reduction in values of the surrounding properties.

Chair Stout explained to the Board that they needed to decide whether or not it has been
proven that there has been a substantial change in this property. He noted that the Board
had also received two substantial documents from Attorney Kinyon and asked if they
would need to continue the hearing in order to absorb the new information. Ms. Zerba
said that she thought the circumstances have changed significantly from the previous
application and would support the request for a Special Exception. Co-Chair Stevens said
that he would agree with Ms. Zerba and that by driving through the neighborhood there
was a noticeable change. Mr. Plenda said that he has not seen sufficient evidence that
there has been a significant change. Chair Stout said that he also agreed that there has
been a substantial change in the property. With a vote of 4-1, the Zoning Board of
Adjustments voted in favor to move forward with the request for a Special Exception.
Mr. Plenda opposed.

Attorney Kinyon reviewed the criteria.

The proposed use is similar to one or more of the uses already authorized in that district
and is in an appropriate location for such a use.

Attorney Kinyon said that a lodging house is allowed by Special Exception in this zone.
He said that the proposed use of rental housing for students is the predominate use in the
neighborhood. Attorney Kinyon said that property is unique and suited to similar uses in
the neighborhood, including the uses of Acadia Hall and conversion of the Monadnock
Flooring.

Such approval would not reduce the value of any property within the district, nor
otherwise be injurious, obnoxious or offensive to the neighborhood.

Attorney Kinyon said that the predominance of the neighborhood was student housing,
and was the application consistent with the idea that this would property would remain
student housing with an additional number of occupants. He referenced the letter from
appraiser Ms. Tierney that stated, based on her review, the proposed use as a lodging
house would not have injurious effect on property values.

There will be no nuisance or serious hazard to vehicles or pedestrians.

Page 7 of 39



DRAFT

He said the previous approval for up to nine occupants at the house demonstrates that no
nuisance or serious hazard to vehicles, pedestrians, or the occupants would result from
the granting of the Special Exception.

Adequate and appropriate facilities (i.e., sewer, water, street, parking, etc.) will be
provided for the proper operation of the proposed use.

Attorney Kinyon said that adequate and appropriate facilities already exist for the proper
operation of the proposed use, because the house is served by City water and sewer, and a
sprinkler system already exists in the house for all proposed living spaces.

Vice Chair Stevens asked what is required for licensing a lodging house. Mr. Schneider
replied that through the City Clerk’s Office, the applicant would need to fill out an
application that would then go before the City Council. He said that inspections of the
property were reported to the City Council on conditions of the property. Vice Chair
Stevens asked if these were subjective notes on use of the property. Mr. Schneider said
that Code Enforcement enforces the building codes; the Fire Department enforces the fire
codes and that focus was more on the property than it is with the tenants living at the
property. Mr. Gorman said that the scope of enforcement for non-license renewal was
weak at best and that property owners were given lengthy amounts of time to correct
issues. He asked Mr. Schneider if that was accurate and if he recalls any application that
is not renewed. Mr. Schneider replied that he could not recall a specific license that was
denied but could recall delays with licensure. Mr. Gorman asked Mr. Schneider if there
were any issues with the current property as a code enforcement official. Mr. Gorman
said that he has driven by the property and has seen the dumpster torn apart. He noted
that he was fairly familiar with off campus living and with nine occupants living in one
house, the house would not be what it is now. Mr. Schneider apologized that he did not
get out of the office on a daily basis and would not be able to fairly answer that question.
Ms. Zerba asked how one and half bathrooms would accommodate nine occupants.

Trevor Grauer, 88 Fox Street, Fairview, CT, said the application was asking for the same
number of occupants that was previously granted at the property. He said that the one-
and a-half-baths would still be suitable to serve nine occupants.

Chair Stout asked about parking with nine resident’s there and only three parking spaces
shown. Rick Grauer, 268 Rowland Road, Fairview, CT, said that he submitted a drawing
of the City approved parking spaces that are 9 feet wide and 18 feet long. He referenced
the drawing and indicated that the parking spaces at the property were 31 feet and left
ample room for someone to park without blocking the sidewalk. Mr. Grauer explained
that the south side of the parking area is 36 feet deep allowing two cars in that one area.
He said that they also own the abutting property and that there is an additional parking
area that is not utilized. He noted that there were another 4 or 5 parking spots at this
location that could also be used. Mr. Gorman asked Mr. Grauer if he was familiar with
the actual parking requirements that went along with a lodging house. Attorney Kinyon
replied that it was one space for every two beds. Mr. Schneider confirmed Attorney
Kinyon’s statement.

Page 8 of 39



DRAFT

Mr. Schneider referenced the Zoning Code Section 102-1226: Setbacks of paved and
unpaved parking and travel surfaces.

He explained that this property would be considered a small lot with a front setback of 5
feet, a side setback of 5 feet and a rear set back of 5 feet.

Chair Stout welcomed public comment.

Attorney Kinyon said that this was an existing property with existing parking and if this
was a vacant property the setbacks would be relevant and applicable. He said that the
number of proposed parking spaces were adequate for the number of occupants. Chair
Stout asked if there were five approved parking spaces for the property. Attorney Kinyon
replied in the affirmative.

With no further comment, Chair Stout closed the public hearing.
The Board reviewed the criteria.

The proposed use is similar to one or more of the uses already authorized in that district
and is in an appropriate location for such a use.

Ms. Zerba said that the use was similar to what currently exists in the neighborhood and
that part of the City’s Masterplan was to contain student housing in one area. She said
that the evidence has shown that Mr. Grauer runs a tight ship and that she has seen where
one of his properties on Winchester Court requires that parents sign a form to ensure
appropriate behavior. She noted that the parents were also held responsible for any
damage to the property.

Mr. Gorman said that the fixation with property owner should not come into play in a
zoning decision. He said that the property could be put on the market at any time and
does not see this information as pertinent. Mr. Gorman said that Mr. Grauer is a good
landlord but that he could sell the property to a bad landlord and the City could run into
the same issues the City was faced with years ago. He said that it was a concern placing
so many students into one single family home.

Such approval would not reduce the value of any property within the district, nor
otherwise be injurious, obnoxious or offensive to the neighborhood.

Vice Chair Stevens said that clearly the nature of the neighborhood has changed. He said
that he did not feel that the property values in the surrounding area would not be changed.
He noted that the use was similar to other uses in the area.

There will be no nuisance or serious hazard to vehicles or pedestrians.

Vice Chair Stevens said that when more people are added to an area there would be more
cars, more visitors and that it definitely created more activity. He said that it was no

Page 9 of 39



DRAFT

different than what was currently in the neighborhood. Vice Chair Stevens said that the
application does meet the criteria but that he was hesitantly in favor.

Chair Stout said that it was an interesting case because it was not the City that revoked
the fraternity capability and that the lodging house function disappeared with a decision
of an external party. He asked what would happen if the Board granted the Special
Exception and if KSC allowed fraternities again. Chair Stout advised the Board to think
about that possibility. He said he did feel that the character of the neighborhood has
changed and given that the Special Exception was denied on that one criterion, he would
favor the applicant.

Mr. Gorman asked how the characteristics of the neighborhood have changed so much.
He said that he has been resident of this region his whole life and attended KSC and does
not think the neighborhood has changed substantially. He said that neighborhood consists
of several rented single family homes. Mr. Gorman said that if economics changed these
homes could easily turn back into owner occupied homes. He said that he had trouble
accepting that the neighborhood has drastically changed. He noted that there was no
specific use for college rentals and that it was a decided market. Mr. Gorman advised the
Board to think about the ramifications if this Special Exception was approved. Mr.
Plenda asked what the choices would be if the Special Exception was not approved and if
rezoning would be considered. Chair Stout replied that the rezoning would be considered
by the ZBA. Mr. Plenda asked why the use of the zone was considered in a previous
application. Mr. Schneider said that changing the zone of a particular piece of property is
a City Council function. He said that the property in question was located in the High
Density District and that property in the previous application was in the Central Business
District.

John Rogers, Acting Health Director/Zoning Administrator, explained that the previous
application was for a lodging house in the Central Business District, where a lodging
house is not allowed. He said that the application for the property at this hearing was
located in the High Density District, which is a permitted use with a Special Exception.

Chair Stout discussed the Findings of Fact:

The proposed use is similar to one or more of the uses already authorized in that district
and is in an appropriate location for such a use. Granted, 5-0

Such approval would not reduce the value of any property within the district, nor
otherwise be injurious, obnoxious or offensive to the neighborhood. Granted 4-1,
Mr. Gorman opposed.

There will be no nuisance or serious hazard to vehicles or pedestrians. Granted 4-1, Mr.
Plenda opposed.

Adequate and appropriate facilities (i.e., sewer, water, street, parking, etc.) will be
provided for the proper operation of the proposed use. Granted, 4-1, Mr. Plenda opposed.

Page 10 of 39



DRAFT

Vice Chair Stevens made a motion to approve ZBA 17-11. The motion was seconded by
Ms. Zerba, the motion was carried unanimously.

On a vote of 3-2, The Zoning Board of Adjustment approved ZBA 17-11. Mr. Gorman
and Mr. Plenda opposed.

ZBA 17-12/ Petitioner, Peter Throop of 15 Beech St, Keene, NH, requests a
Variance for property located at 25 Beech St., Keene, Tax Map Parcel #018-05-015,
which is in the Medium Density District and owned by the applicant. The Petitioner
requests a Variance to permit the conversion of a single family home to a two family
dwelling with a lot size of 9,148 sq. ft. where 13,400 is required per Section 102-791,
Basic Zone Dimensional Requirements of the Zoning Ordinance.

Mr. Schneider indicated that the property was located in between Roxbury Street and
Beaver Street and was located in the Medium Density District.

Peter Throop, 15 Beech Street, Keene, NH said that he moved into this house in 1997 and
at that time it was a rental house. He said that the house consisted of four bedrooms and
two bathrooms and a parking lot suitable for four parking spaces. Mr. Throop said that he
bought the property in 2001, continued living there and rented to Antioch students. He
said that in 2003 he bought the house located next door at 15 Beech Street. Mr. Throop
stated that he currently lives at that property.

Mr. Throop explained that he is currently going through a divorce and that his wife will
be converting the property located at 25 Beech Street into a two-family in order to have
rental income to help cover expenses. He stated the property would be owner-occupied
and that the property would continue to have four bedrooms and two baths.

Mr. Throop reported that the parcel size of the property was 9,148 square feet where
13,400 were required for a two-family dwelling. He referenced the chart that was
included with the application and asked the Board to look at the neighborhood that was
laid out on the chart. Mr. Throop said that the neighborhood consisted of Dover Street,
Beech Street, Grant Street and Douglas Street. There are located in a Median Density
District. He explained that in that four block area, there were 62 total residential parcels,
24 are two-family homes and three are multifamily with 3 or more units. He said of those
27 units none of them are compliant with the Zoning Ordinances in terms of lot size. Mr.
Throop said of those 27 units there are 16 units that are the same size as his lot or smaller.
He said that there is a four-unit building located on Dover Street that is 6,540 square feet
and there are three units across the street from his property located on 8,700 square feet.
He said that in this part of the Medium Density District there are no other multifamily
that are even close to the requirements of the Ordinance. Mr. Throop said that he views
this as a hardship and feels that he deserves the same rights as other multifamily owners.

Mr. Throop reviewed the criteria.
e Granting the variance would not be contrary to the public interest because the
existing use and the proposed use are both residential uses. He said that 25 Beech
Street property is a four-bedroom, two-bath house that is connected to town water

Page 11 of 39



DRAFT

and sewer. The house is currently rented to undergraduate students and has been
rented as such for over 25 years. He said that there is adequate parking for 4
vehicles in the existing parking lot. Mr. Throop said that the proposed condition
will include 2 units, one of which will be owner-occupied.

e Mr. Throop said that the Ordinance intends to create a coherent residential
neighborhood that includes a two-family and multi-family dwellings on lots
smaller than are permitted in the Medium Density District. He said that as long as
the proposed Variance creates a condition that is substantially compatible with the
neighborhood currently exists one can conclude that the Spirit of the Ordinance
would be observed.

e Mr. Throop said as he indicated that 16 of the 27 properties with 2 or more
dwelling units have lot sizes that are the same or smaller than his property. He
said the granting of the Variance will not cause an increase in impacts to the
neighborhood or general public and the benefit that would be granted to the
Petitioner is not greater than that enjoyed by other two-family and multi-family
property owners in the neighborhood.

e He said that 40% of the parcels in the neighborhood are two-family or multi-
family parcels with substandard lot sizes, and there is no significant change in the
nature or intensity of the existing use compared to the proposed condition. He said
that it is highly unlikely that the value in the surrounding properties would be
diminished.

e Mr. Throop said that since the minimum for lot size standard for the district is
intended to represent a density required to serve the public interest all 27 two-
family and multi-family parcels within the four block neighborhood
are below the minimum lot size required for the use in the district. He said that the
application of the minimum lot size would constitute an unnecessary hardship.

e Mr. Throop said that the proposed use is a reasonable one because it is a
compatible residential use and density in the neighborhood.

Ms. Zerba asked if there would be any changes to the exterior. Mr. Throop replied that
there would not be any changes to the exterior.

Chair Stout welcomed public comment.

Mark Froling, 240 Roxbury Street, Keene, NH said that he came as a character witness.
Mr. Froling said that Mr. Throop was a terrific neighbor and that he supported the
application.

Hanspeter Weber, 22 Douglas Street, Keene, NH said that he has lived on Douglas Street
for thirty-plus years. He said that Mr. Throop is a great neighbor. Mr. Weber said that the
house he lived in was a single family home and was then converted to a two-family. He
explained that he understood the importance of having that extra income from a two-
family and that he would not have been able to live in the home if it was not converted to
a two-family. Mr. Weber said that he was in support of granting the Variance.

Chair Stout read a letter from Brian Hansen, 220 Roxbury Street, Keene, NH that was
opposed to the application.

Page 12 of 39



DRAFT

Mr. Throop said that he did not have a copy of the letter but that it sounded like a number
of the arguments by Mr. Hansen did not make sense. Mr. Gorman asked if 220 Roxbury
Street was a single-family it or multi-family home. Mr. Throop replied that it was
currently a single-family on a double lot. He explained that there has been a long-
standing, strained relationship between Mr. Hansen and himself.

Vice Chair Stevens asked if the property located at 23 Beech Street shared a driveway
with 25 Beech Street. Mr. Throop replied in the affirmative.

Vice Chair Stevens asked if there was sufficient parking. Mr. Throop replied that the
parking lot measures 32° x 24’ and was three feet short of the City standard. He added
that he would be willing to increase the size by three feet if necessary. Vice Chair
Stevens asked what the requirements were for a two family. Mr. Schneider replied that
for an apartment it was two parking spaces per dwelling unit.

With no further comment, Chair Stout closed the public hearing.
Chair Stout discussed the criteria.

Ms. Zerba made a motion to approve ZBA 17-12. The motion was seconded by Mr.
Gorman, which carried unanimously.

Granting the Variance would not be contrary to the public interest:
Ms. Zerba said that she would agree with Mr. Throop’s comments and that granting the
Variance would not be contrary to the public interest.

If the Variance were granted, the spirit of the Ordinance would be observed:
All members of the Board agreed.

Granting the Variance would do substantial justice:
Chair Stout said that he felt the Variance would do substantial justice given the evidence
of the surrounding properties.

If the Variance were granted, the values of the surrounding properties would not be
diminished:
All members of the Board agreed.

Unnecessary Hardship

E. Owing to special conditions of the property that distinguish it from other properties in
the area, denial of the Variance would result in unnecessary hardship because:

ix. No fair and substantial relationship exists between the general public purpose of the
ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the property:

All members of the Board agreed.

The proposed use is a reasonable one:
All members of the Board agreed.

Page 13 of 39



DRAFT

Chair Stout reviewed the Findings of Fact:
Granting the Variance would not be contrary to the public interest: Granted, 5-0

If the Variance were granted, the spirit of the Ordinance would be observed: Granted,
5-0

Granting the Variance would do substantial justice: Granted, 5-0

If the Variance were granted, the values of the surrounding properties would not be
diminished: Granted, 5-0

Unnecessary Hardship
E. Owing to special conditions of the property that distinguish it from other properties in
the area, denial of the Variance would result in unnecessary hardship because:
ix. No fair and substantial relationship exists between the general public purpose
of the ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the
property: Granted, 5-0
X. The proposed use is a reasonable one: Granted, 5-0

With a vote of 5-0, The Zoning Board of Adjustment approved ZBA 17-12.

V. New Business: Rules of Procedure

Mr. Rogers referenced the Rules of Procedure being reviewed by the Board. He said that,
based on the comments and suggestions by the Board, the Rules of Procedure were
updated. Mr. Rogers said that on page 73, a staff report outlined the breakdown of steps
required by Staff to prepare the monthly Board packet necessary to conduct the meeting.

Chair Stout asked if the Board approved the Rules of Procedure would the fees would
increase immediately. Mr. Rogers replied in the affirmative. In addition, Mr. Rogers
suggested that the staff would bring forth a reasonable timeframe for the Board to have a
periodical review.

Chair Stout asked Mr. Rogers to confirm the cost of fees. Mr. Rogers said that the
application fee would be increased to $100, the cost of mailing the abutter notices with
the US Postal Service and the $25 fee for a legal notice. Mr. Rogers said that the total
cost would depend on the level of information needed for each application.

Ms. Zerba asked if the fees were less than comparable cities. Mr. Rogers replied that the
comparable cities were Bedford, Concord, Nashua, Londonderry and Salem. He noted
that the proposed fees were much lower compared to these cities.

Page 14 of 39



DRAFT

Ms. Zerba made a motion to approve the Rules of Procedure as presented with a
recommendation of a review every two years. The motion was seconded by Mr. Gorman,
and was carried unanimously.

Chair Stout thanked the City staff for their hard work and effort.

V1. Communications

Mr. Schneider reported that Elena Brander moved out of the area and had to resign from
the Board. He asked that Board consider having the City Clerk put together an
appreciation letter to send to Ms. Brander.

Ms. Zerba moved to direct the City Clerk to draft a letter in appreciation of Ms. Brander
to be signed by Chair Stout. All members of the Board agreed.

VIIl. Adjournment

Hearing no further business, Chair Stout adjourned the meeting at 8:31PM.

Respectfully submitted by,
Jennifer Clark, Minute Taker

Page 15 of 39



Cityof Keene

New Hampshive

NOTICE OF DECISION
July 6, 2015
AMENDED

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

CASE NUMBER: ZBA 14-12
Property Address: 0 Daniels Hill Rd.
Zone: Rural Zone
Owner: Leah LaRock
Petitioner: Leah LaRock

You are hereby notified that the request for a Variance for property located at 0 Daniels Hill Rd.,
which is in the Rural Zone and based upon the record and which is incorporated by reference has
been approved by a vote of 5-0. This approval is to be permitted to build a single family dwelling
on a lot with 1.76 acres where a five (5) acre minimum lot size is required per Table 102-791 Basic
Zone Dimensional Requirements of the Zoning Code.

Conditions:

1. Prior to granting of a building permit, the owner will install a 6”-12” berm across the first
Woods Road near Daniels Hill Road, and also across the second Woods Road located
(easterly) towards Route 9 over the existing open area. In regards to the berm located
(easterly) across the second Woods Road, this berm is to extend to the existing berm on the
lot.

2. That the owner maintains a vegetated buffer of approximately 20 feet along the road
frontage westerly of the driveway. The buffer does not have to be opaque but shall have a
density similar to the existing vegetation. This buffer may include new trees or the existing
trees.

3. Mr. Robert Hitchcock of SVE Associates will verify that the development of the property
does not increase the runoff onto the abutting property to the East.

Corinne Marcou, Cla:k

NOTE: Any person affected has a right to appeal this Decision. If you wish to appeal, you must act
within thirty-(30) days of the date of this notice. The necessary first step, before any appeal may be
taken to the Courts, is to apply to the Board of Adjustment for a rehearing. The motion for rehearing
must set forth all the grounds on which you will be base your appeal. See New Hampshire Statutes,
RSA Chapter 677, for details.

City of Keene « 3 Washington Street - Keene, NH » 03431 - www.ci.keene.nh.us

Working Toward a Sustainable Community
Page 16 of 39



35 Summit Rd.
/BA 17-13

Petitioner requests a Variance to permit a
home occupation up to 1,200 sq. ft. in an
accessory building on a lot in the Rural
District where a maximum home occupation
size is 300 sq. ft. is permitted per Section 102
-921 (a)(5) Home Occupation Criteria of the
Zoning Ordinance.

Page 17 of 39



B Cityof Keenc

New- Hampshive

NOTICE OF HEARING

ZBA 17-13

A meeting of the Zoning Board of Adjustment will be held on Monday, August 7, 2017 at
6:30 PM in the City Hall Committee Room, g floor, 3 Washington St, Keene, New
Hampshire to consider the petition of Robert J. Koning and Catherine R. Owen of 250
Summit Rd, Keene, NH, represented by Brickstone Land Use Consultants, LLC, of 185
Winchester St., Keene. The Petitioner requests a Variance for property located at 35 Summit
Ridge Dr., Keene, Tax Map Parcel #918-10-011.0100, which is in the Rural District and
owned by the applicant. The Petitioner requests a Variance to permit a home occupation up to
1,200 sq. ft. in an accessory building on a lot in the Rural district where a maximum home
occupation size of 300 sq. ft. is permitted per Section 102-921 (a) (5) Home Occupation
Criteria of the Zoning Ordinance. The home occupation will be located in an existing barn on
a lot to be merged with 250 Summit Rd. The merged properties will be 15.2 acres in size.

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

Corinne Marcou, Clerk
Notice Issuance Date: July 24, 2017

City of Keene « 3 Washinglon Street « Keene, NH - 03431 « www.ci.keene.nh.us

Page 18 of 39 Working Toward a Suslainable Community



APPLICATION FOR APPEAL

For Office Use Only: I
Case No. =
Zoning Board of Adjustment Date Filed |
3 Washington Street, Fourth Floor R:ci:ivlefi By-’ ol

Keene, New Hampshire 03431
Phone: (603) 352-5440

Page ! of
Reviewed By __, :

The undersigned hereby applies to the City of Keene Zoning Board of Adjustment for an Appeal in
accordance with provisions of the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated 674:33.

TYPE OF APPEAL - MARK AS MANY AS NECESSARY

APPEAL OF AN ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION

APPLICATION FOR CHANGE OF A NONCONFORMING USE

APPLICATION FOR ENLARGEMENT OF A NONCONFORMING USE

APPLICATION FOR A SPECIAL EXCEPTION

APPLICATION FOR A VARIANCE

APPLICATION FOR AN EQUITABLE WAIVER OF DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS

“ SECTION I - GENERAL INFORMATION ll

Name(s) of Applicant(s} Bricldstrne hand Use (ousuthads LLC  Phone: €03-357-01
Address 85 [dinanhester Street \(\ee\"rf NAF 03431

Name(s) of Owner(s) i e ¥ ;

Address A50 Sommmit R , Keene Nt ©343)

Location of Property =5° Suwmml;’r_ Q,\Agf Dri\)e

og’0C000

SECTION II - LOT CHARACTERISTICS

Tax Map Parcel Number all‘S’/lo/ ol /0100 Zoning District ({\7 u\f&\
Lot Dimensions: Front (057~ Rear ST4'Y%  Side ‘4o’ Y side 1,149 ' -
Lot Area: Acres GH Ac Square Feet Q18,184 sk */-

% of Lot Covered by Structures (buildings, garages, pools, decks, etc.): Existing 0.9 % Proposed 0.9 o/_/Q
% of Impervious Coverage (structures plus driveways and/or parking areas, ete.): Existing X é Proposed o/o

Present Use  Home Occuv Dc::h,on
Proposed Use  Home OcCU pa:ho N

SECTION III - AFFIDAVIT

1 hereby certify that I am the owner or the authorized agent of the owner of the property upon which
/Jp al is spught and that all information provided by me is true under penalty of law.
M Date / 4 ’ i7

(Signature of Ownéf or Authonzcd Agé/t)

Please Print Name

K:ZBA\Web_Forms\Variance Application_2010.doc 6/6/2017

Page 19 of 39



PROPERTY ADDRESS 35 Sommd Tﬁ'age Drlde

APPLICATION FOR A VARIANCE

e A Variance is requested from Section (s) 102- 921 (G)CS\ of the Zoning Ordinance to permit:
<ee Atlached

DESCRIBE BRIEFLY YOUR RESPONSE TO EACH VARIANCE CRITERIA:

1. Granting the variance would not be contrary to the public interest because:

2. If the variance were granted, the spirit of the ordinance would be observed because:

3. Granting the variance would do substantial justice because:

4. If the variance were granted, the values of the surrounding properties would not be diminished
because

K:ZBA\Web_Fonms\Variance_Application_2010.doc 6/6/2017

Page 20 of 39



5. Unnecessary Hardship

A. Owing to special conditions of the property that distinguish it from other properties in the area,
denial of the variance would result in unnecessary hardship because:

i. No fair and substantial relationship exists between the general public purposes of the
ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the property because:

and

il. The proposed use is a reasonable one because:

B. Explain how, it the criteria in subparagraph (A) are not established, an unnecessary hardship will be
deemed to exist if, and only if, owing to special conditions of the property that distinguish it from other
properties in the area, the property cannot be reasonably used in strict conformance with the ordinance,
and a variance is therefore necessary to enable a reasonable use of it.

K:ZBA\Web_Forms\Variance_Application_2010.doc 6/6/2017

Page 21 of 39



PROPERTY ADDRESS: 35 Summit Ridge Drive and 250 Summit Road

APPLICATION FOR A VARIANCE

e A variance is requested from Section (s) 102-921 (a) (5), Home Occupation,
Criteria of the Keene Zoning Ordinance to permit:

A home occupation up to 1200 sf in size in an accessory building on a lot
in the Rural district where a maximum home occupation size of 300 sf is permitted.
The home occupation will be located in an existing barn on a lot to be merged with
250 Summit Road. The merged properties will be 15.2 acres in size.

DESCRIBE BRIEFLY YOUR RESPONSE TO EACH CONDITION:

1. Granting the Variance would not be contrary to the public interest because:

The Keene Master Plan recommends the creation of live-work properties within
the community. Granting the variance will allow this property owner the opportunity
to use his existing barn to grow his home occupation on the same property where he
lives. Kontech Design is a small design and manufacturing facility using computer aided
design and machining skills to create prototypes and specialty products of all types. All
activities associated with the home occupation will be conducted inside the building.
There will be no more than 1 employee who does not reside on the property. Deliveries
are limited with an average of only one truck per week and three UPS/FedEx deliveries.
There will be no changes to the exterior appearance of the barn. The home occupation
will operate Monday thru Friday from 8 AM to 5 PM and will not operate nights or

weekends.
It is in the public interest to allow home occupations which will maintain the

character of the residential property, be consistent with the Keene Master Plan, and not be
a nuisance or hazard to the neighborhood.

2. If the variance were granted, the spirit of the ordinance would be observed
because: The spirit of the ordinance, in this case, is to protect the public
health, safety and welfare by restricting home occupations in size to limit the intensity of

use. In this case, the home occupation already exists at the property. The owner of the
property operates the existing home occupation in an office within their home. Increasing
demand has required the use of his home workshop, a 900 sf shed which is also located
on the property. The proposal is to move the home occupation into the existing 1200 sf
barn located on the same property. The additional space and higher ceiling height in the
barn will allow for modern manufacturing equipment to be purchased which is needed for
his work.

The existing barn will be re-painted, insulated, new windows will be installed and
a new overhead door will be installed. The barn will remain the same size and shape. This
will preserve the existing residential character of the property.

The owner is currently the only employee. At some future time, one employee
may be added, which is permitted by the ordinance. All truck deliveries are via Summit
Road. No increase in truck delivery traffic is expected.

The spirit of the ordinance is observed in part because the home occupation will
occupy an existing barn which will be preserved in appearance. All business activities

Page 22 of 39



will be conducted inside the building and there will be no more than one additional
employee. Traffic will not significantly increase and there will be no nuisance or hazard
to the public.

Public welfare will be enhanced by this project because the existing building will
be improved and will result in an increase to the property tax assessment.

The proposed use will not create a threat to public health, public safety or public
welfare. This proposal meets the spirit and intent of the ordinance.

3. Granting the variance would do substantial justice because:

When merged, the property will be in excess of 15 acres. The existing barn is
located over 800 feet from Summit Road, over 400 feet from Summit Ridge Road and
over 200 feet from the closest neighbor. By utilizing the existing barn, the character
of the neighborhood is respected and existing property values will not be diminished.

City water and city sewer is available to this property if needed, and has adequate
capacity for this use. Granting the variance will do substantial justice because it will
allow a use which is not contrary to the public interest and observes the spirit and
intent of the ordinance.

4. 1If the variance were granted, the values of the surrounding properties would not
pe diminished because: The home occupation already exists at the property.
This proposal will move the home occupation to the existing barn and is only visible
from one house located more than 200 feet away. The exterior of the barn will be re-
painted and new windows and an overhead door will be installed. Otherwise the
building appearance will remain the same. All business activities will be conducted
indoors. The business will operate normal business hours, M-F 8 AM to 5 PM and not
on weekends. Deliveries to the property will be via Summit Road and will remain
similar to the existing number of deliveries.

The use as proposed will not generate excess noise, will not increase traffic and
will not be a threat to public safety or public welfare. Granting this variance will not
result in diminished property value for surrounding properties.

5. Unnecessary Hardship

A. Owing to special conditions of the property that distinguish it from other
properties in the area, denial of the variance would result in unnecessary
hardship because:

i. No fair and substantial relationship exists between the general
public purposes of the ordinance provision and the specific
application of that provision to the property because:

The merged lots will form a property over 15 acres in size with an existing house,
two sheds and a 1200 sf barn. The barn is hundreds of feet from the public rights
of ways. The existing ordinance limits the size of a home occupation to no

more than 300 sf. The purpose of this is to limit the intensity of the use and to
preserve the character of residential properties. In this case, this is a large property
with an existing barn which is barely visible from the public rights of way.

The large machines utilized in manufacturing the prototypes require a higher

Page 23 of 39



ceiling than is currently available. The ceiling height in the barn is 11 feet

and adequate for specialized machines. This home occupation already exists

on the property and has not created a nuisance or hazard, and has not resulted in a
diminution of property values. Denial of the variance would serve no public

purpose in this case.

And
ii. The proposed use is a reasonable one because:

The home occupation already exists on the property. It has never
resulted in a nuisance or hazard and has not diminished property values in the
neighborhood. The move to the existing 1200 sf barn will not increase traffic
or noise. It will not change the residential appearance of the property and will
not diminish surrounding property values. It is fair and reasonable to allow
this use under these circumstances.

B. Explain how, if the criteria in subparagraph (A) are not established, an
unnecessary hardship will be deemed to exist if, and only if, owing to special
conditions of the property that distinguish it from other properties in the
area, the property cannot be reasonably used in strict conformance with the
ordinance, and a variance is therefore necessary to enable a reasonable use of
it.

The home occupation already exists on the property.

It has never resulted in a nuisance or hazard and has not diminished property
values in the neighborhood. The move to the existing 1200 sf bam will not
increase traffic or noise. It will not change the residential appearance of the
property and will not diminish surrounding property values. It is fair and
reasonable to allow this use under these circumstances.

It is unfair and an unnecessary hardship to restrict this property when
allowing an existing home occupation to move into an existing larger space with
higher ceilings will fulfill the general public purposes of the ordinance by
maintaining property values without being a nuisance or hazard to the
neighborhood. A variance is necessary to allow the proposed use on this site.

Page 24 of 39



=

LOT DATA

ZONING

TAX MAP #

LOT SIZE

LOT COVERAGE
BUILDING
PAVING
TOTAL

GENE

RURAL
918100110000 & 918100110100

662,112 SF — 15.2 ACx

5,230 SF ~ 0.8%
11,600 SF — 1.7%
16,830 SF — 2.5%

RAL NOTES

THIS IS A COMPOSITE PLAN OF THIS PROPERTY BASED ON AERIAL
PHOTOGRAPHY AND GROUND SURVEY. THIS PLAN IS NOT INTENDED TQ
REPRESENT A BOUNDARY SURVEY OF THIS PROPERTY. TOPOGRAPHIC

INFORMATION BASED ON AERIAL TOPOGRAPHY.
THIS PROPERTY IS NOT LOCATED WITHIN THE 10C YEAR FLOODPLAIN

FOR THE CITY OF KEENE.

D)rickstone

ZBA APPLICATION FOR
EXPANSION OF A HOME OCCUPATION

SKYLINE

SCALE: 1"=150"

PLOT PLAN

DATE TenT

ZBA1

KONTECH DESIGN

250 SUNMMIT ROAD, KEENE, NH

D lLand Use Consuitants, LLC

186 'Winchaester Street, Keene, NH 03431
Phone: (603) 357-0116

Page 25 of 39



This page intentionally left blank

Page 26 of 39



. g
329 Winchester St.

/BA 17-14

Petitioner requests a Variance to permit a
second menu board per Section 102-1311
of the Zoning Ordinance.

Page 27 of 39



CityofKeene

New Hampshive

NOTICE OF HEARING

ZBA 17-14

A meeting of the Zoning Board of Adjustment will be held on Tuesday, September 5,
2017 at 6:30 PM in the City Hall Committee Room, 2™ floor, 3 Washington St, Keene,
New Hampshire to consider the petition of 256 Investment Associates, of 40 Sawyer Pond
Rd., Mirror Lake, NH, requests a Variance for property located at 329 Winchester St., Keene,
Tax Map Parcel #053-01-021, which is in the Commerce District and owned by the
applicants. Represented by Michael Lussier of Wiley Management, 4 Brimstone Hill Rd.,
Suite 7 Epsom, NH; the Petitioners requests a Variance to permit a second menu board per
Section 102-1311 of the Zoning Ordinance.

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

C Qv gsen

Corinne Marcou, Clerk
Notice Issuance Date: August 21, 2017

City of Keene » 3 Washington Street « Keene, NH = 03431 « www.ci.keene.nh.us

Working Toward a Sustainzble Community
Page 28 of 39



APPLICATION FOR APPEAL For Office Use Only:
. _ CaseNo.?E,n ‘?-‘q
Zoning Board of Adjustment Date Filed _&M
3 Washington Street, Fourth Floor Received By c'd AA

Keene, New Hampshire 03431 Page | A

Phone: (603) 352-5440 Reviewed By {8 M
Ty anl s

The undersigned hereby applies to the City of Keene Zoning Board of Adjustment for an Appeal in
accordance with provisions of the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated 674:33,

TYPE OF APPEAL - MARK AS MANY AS NECESSARY

APPEAL OF AN ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION

APPLICATION FOR CHANGE OF A NONCONFORMING USE

APPLICATION FOR ENLARGEMENT OF A NONCONFORMING USE

APPLICATION FOR A SPECIAL EXCEPTION

APPLICATION FOR A VARIANCE

APPLICATION FOR AN EQUITABLE WAIVER OF DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS

SECTION I - GENERAL INFORMATION

Name(s) of Applicant(s) Wervio  oF vA LLC Phone: (03-73 (- ¥55¢
Address % BRimsiouc e Re. H7  Epsowm, v 02224

Name(s) of Owner(s) 25 FnvestmiNr ASSo crpTes

Address 40 < awsveR  Tous R WiRgor LWeec Nk 02853

Location of Property 229 W ESTER ST Keevec, by 0343

Oo@®@0O000

SECTION HI - LOT CHARACTERISTICS

Tax Map Parcel Number 0$30102:0000 Zoning District lomm eRee
Lot Dimensions: Front /&%’ Rear o2 Side®  ygo' Side* 393
Lot Area: Acres [.100 Square Feet 47,916

% of Lot Covered by Structures (buildings, garages, pools, decks, etc.): Existing 7%  Proposed 7% (Ve zewe. CtwsE)
% of Impervious Coverage (structures plus driveways and/or parking areas. etc.): Existing 72 % Proposed _S#wma g

Present Use Cowm £ RLIVL  FESTAVRANT

Proposed Use Swmme - mNeo  (tAnpaES

SECTION II1 - AFFIDAVIT

[ hereby certify that [ am the owner or the authorized agent of the owner of the property upon which
this appeal is qougw that all information provided by me is true under penalty of law.

Date 3"9’]7

(Signature of Owher or Authorized A gent)

Please Print Name :)-DN ‘—Hﬂﬁ{y

K:ZBAWcb_Forms\Variance_Application_2010.doc 6672017

Page 29 of 39



PROPERTY ADDRESS 329 o, invesested ST Keeac, P& 0343)

APPLICATION FOR A VARIANCE

102-1311

s A Variance 1s requested from Section (s) of the Zoning Ordinance to permit:

A second menu board

DESCRIBE BRIEFLY YOUR RESPONSE TO EACH VARTANCE CRITERIA:

1. Granting the variance would not be contrary to the public interest because:

Pec to 4He LocaTion OF Tu&E  MewuRonRd Rsistromed RBeurwn THE RiTAvRAlNT,
97 would NoT Create R Distraction b TRerrzc off WincesTER. ST

2. If the variance were granted, the spirit of the ordinance would be observed because:

IT yuesu> Hpue wo pEeATIVE FwpmeT Jo Tus éensmz_ Peziic

3. Granting the variance would do substantial justice because:

T4 WooLd  RANOW  OCR  (eSToWERS 7o gnszey Ureww Tae M Ewo 202D

From B SrowdAry LApE , DUE o (ue Boosrivg Parizvh let CewrréoearioNs

avd  Pucess farwrg

4. If the variance were granted, the values of the surrounding propertics would not be diminished
because

It ‘woovrn -Have O Dreecr Fwpell ON NEbHZcRrY Prepertaczs

K:ZBA'Wcb_Forms\Variance Application_2010.doc 6/6/2017

Page 30 of 39



5. Unnecessary Hardship

A. Owing to special conditions of the property that distinguish it from other properties in the area,

denial of the variance would result in unnecessary hardshl;g because: e Cosromees EnreRrmlr FRow Tne Pawe
OoF Tie Preoperty wilt WT HhnoE ViSigiE Atcsss 7o THE PRIMARY MEWLZOR), THERE RRE FoRimb Tham
T frpaf | THE Buithimtt (Rewy IV S0TTIE NeTEs :

i. No fair and substantial relationship exists between the general public purposes of the

ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the property because:

Twis  Pagprery s PlwareLy ouwed Aw TRE Wekvdop s wer Uist ble

Cwiess fpe ow Tue PRopseTy

and

ii. The proposed use is a reasonable one because:

i p RoUPES LS Tuwe ARwITy To G cve (Guests A MEPE peschivs

btz.‘wﬁ Tvey ExpeRzewce woITh WO PEGATIVC ‘ImPan To Tifé-‘(vé‘ntﬁm_ Peiic

B. Explain how, if the criferia in subparagraph (A) are not established, an unnecessary hardship will be
deemed to exist if, and only if, owing to special conditions of the property that distinguish it from other
properties in the area, the property cannot be reasonably used in strict conformance with the ordinance,
and a variance is therefore necessary to enable a reasonable use of it.

Wit oot T \J(g_Q’iu_hLef wWe ot loafinve To {"W\“E !TIZHFF-TL
Tegue T ook Parkamh Lot oo By \Boe&ﬁ.{— Allowe oo (roests >

Pecieve Tne G)um..]-fa et SCennils “They l)ase,e_ug

K:ZBA\Web_Forms\Variance_Application_2010.doc 6/6/2017

Page 31 of 39



Keene, NH M

RELOGATE (2) ENST. ADA

i )
SONS. ADD (1) Vany 1 kg Ao u ALPHAarchitects
ACCESSIOLE PARKING' SUB GG LOCATON. &S SHOMN

17 CHESTNUT STREET

PORTLANG, ME 04101
PHONE: 207.761.9500

i ] It RAX: 2D7,761,9596

[ L B ' \ o D0
v A r—————
' = HEW PANTED SITG NUMBER: ey
\n b g i ,"'_.—__',/_c""”"“”‘ RO / e L] T
Y W 5 CONC. WA i ; AGAET TYPE: FRANCHISE
\ :En CLARD. RAL. Lv:vi E « Eé: . ; # CLASSIFICATION: REFRESH
% ML SAA| ...g__.._ l% OANER Loy Wikay
\ w - T T ST & B T

4 LY Z GRADE CLAEEFIGATIOH:
= 8 » ’/7 S5 YYD @ MV ..
4 sl e we
B ot -
\ @ 5. : / Z FURNITURE PAGKAGE e
Vo ///; {9

BEBKIN BULEETINS, THRy DE 20184
e ey

J SN 10 f
WA

NEW LOCATION OF [£1
RELOCATED MEHU BOARD 10 BE RELOCATED:

09 ARCH. SITE PLAN
LT =00
PANTED CROSSNA
ST
ANE OF BXTI, DRME 10
B HEMONED (DASHED)
ADD HEW BETECTEEE PAMTED CROSSHALK WM AP DFTECTBELE
LR STERRL L A, WaPNME TP, REFER 10 SIRPES, «/ STOP ety
RUR T DE1L, lfﬁ\.l@ CENQTE WALKRG AREA DETL. /1.1 AR & LETTERNG
- 4
Ol ::"3 ;

17

Store # 03130
329 Winchester St.
Keene, NH. 03431

- e
o e
£ 3 i L L} “
W o = :
/ ;i i e e
o V/ 1w - —
= [ REWIORONG RO VERT, §3. #'-0" OC. L] :
f;:mmm ™. F oc E I 374" A 1BGA PICKET
P - ¥ ASPHNT TOPRIS et i
gl saubE (EOWACTED ThCMESS) E L | T2/ e
——m .
| ] Fremd GLOES Btk = 50N
2 o ” | FOADCR COATED $ Hber f
" ) ot
i I
4 o -
& CISHED STONE %
OWPACTED THERNESE) § K e ﬁﬂﬂ."ﬁ‘m e
S KL DOWCRETE CIA55 0 B BIRASTN [T hj

SITE PLAN

PICK-UP L SDETALS
WINDOV\/

SAFETY RAILING DETAIL PAVEMENT MARKER DETAIL
(3] CONCRETE CURS DETAIL (02 SXTRUDED CURB DETAIL 08 AEYR 03 oavEMEN As1 1

07-25-2017

Page 32 of 39



RM5200 b

NSS5#: 90012910 MENUBOARD

MATERIALS
) ) ) 7! _ 2%11

o Extruded aluminum cabinet construction.

9 Each panel rotates for dayparting. The new wave rotation system eliminates having to pull pins.

9 Hinged aluminum locking cover doors with mar-resistant polycarbonate faces.

o Standard RM5200 includes magnetic frames and carriages to match current corporate layout.
Graphics provided by others. Strips and price kit additional charge.
Blackout liners optional, NSS#: 90012164

e Decorative pole cover.

) Protective rain guard - an NSS exclusive.

o [llumination - T12 lamps. One ballast per cabinet.
*Anchor Bolt Kit sold separately, NSS#: 90002151
*Foundation requirements are site specific and subject to local soil confitions Soft Metailic Brown (cabinets, pole cover)

and coede requirements
“Total electrical load = 6.72 amps. Requires 1-20 amp circuit @ 120v/60Hz.

COLORS & FINISHES

51 rev 4716

WENDYS@NATSIGNSYS.COM

f{ National Sign SyStemSm 800.544.6726  \WWW.NATIONALSIGNSYSTEMS.COM

Page 33 of 39



.
Grove St. & Water St.

/BA 17-15

Petitioner is requesting a Variance to
permit the current open lot to be converted
to a commercial parking lot per Section
102-422.

Page 34 of 39



CityofKeene

New Hampshire

NOTICE OF HEARING

ZBA 17-15

A meeting of the Zoning Board of Adjustment will be held on Tuesday, September 5,
2017 at 6:30 PM in the City Hall Committee Room, 2™ floor, 3 Washington St, Keene,
New Hampshire to consider the petition of Michael Lynch and Jeanette Wright of 150
Meetinghouse Rd., Hinsdale, requests a Variance for property located at Grove and Water
St., Tax Map Parcel #028-03-011. Represented by Wendy Pelletier of Cardinal Surveying
and Land Planning; the Petitioners requests a Variance to permit the current open lot to be
converted to a commercial parking lot per Section 102-422 of the Zoning Ordinance.

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

(paes Moty

Corinne Marcou, Clefk
Notice Issuance Date: August 21, 2017

City of Keene « 3 Washington Street « Keene, NH « 03431 « www.ci.keene.nh.us

Working Toward a Sustainable Communit
Page 35 of 39 8 Y



APPLICATION FOR APPEAL For Office Use Only:

Case No. -
Zoning Board of Adjustment Dz:: Fi(I)ed &\l \8 || 1 =
3 Washington Street, Fourth Floor ReceivedBy (oAl
Keene, New Hampshire 03431 Page of g
Phone: (603) 352-5440 Reviewes By 1.5

The undersigned hereby applies to the City of Keene Zoning Board of Adjustment for an Appcal in
accordance with provisions of the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated 674:33.

TYPE OF APPEAL - MARK AS MANY AS NECESSARY

APPEAL OF AN ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION

APPLICATION FOR CHANGE OF A NONCONFORMING USE

APPLICATION FOR ENLARGEMENT OF A NONCONFORMING USE

APPLICATION FOR A SPECIAL EXCEPTION

APPLICATION FOR A VARIANCE

APPLICATION FOR AN EQUITABLE WAIVER OF DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS

SECTION I - GENERAL INFORMATION
Name(s) of Applicant(s) Wendy Pelletier, Cardinal Surveying & Land Planning phone: 499-6151

0®0000

Address 463 Washington Street, Keene

Name(s) of Owner(s) Michael Lynch & Jeanette Wright

Address 150 Meetinghouse Road, Hinsdale, NH
Location of Property Grove & Water St.

SECTION I - LOT CHARACTERISTICS

Tax Map Parcel Number 028-03-011-0000 Zoning District High Density
Lot Dimensions: Front 66.22 Rear 55.62 Side 73.52 Side 70.33
Lot Area: Acres -11 Square Feet 4,635

% of Lot Covered by Structures (buildings, garages, pools, decks, etc.): Existing 0 Proposed
% of Impervious Coverage (structures plus driveways and/or parking areas, etc.): Existing 100 Proposed 100

Present Use Open Lot
Proposed Use Commercial Parking Lot

SECTION III - AFFIDAVIT

I hereby certify that [ am the owner or the authorized agent of the owner of the property upon which
this appeal is sought and that all information provided by me is true under penalty of law.

e dy b Poth e Date 8/18/2017
(Signature of Owtber or Authorized Agent)

Please Print Name YWendy Pelletier

K:ZBA\Web_Forms\Variance_Application_2010.dac 6/6/2017

Page 36 of 39



Grove & Water

PROPERTY ADDRESS

APPLICATION FOR A VARIANCE
102-422

e A Variance is requested from Section (s) of the Zoning Ordinance to permit:

The current open lot to be converted to a commercial parking lot.

DESCRIBE BRIEFLY YOUR RESPONSE TO EACH VARIANCE CRITERIA:

1. Granting the variance would not be contrary to the public interest because:
THIS BERPLI T i 1S BEIMEe SustutTED To COmRETT
o 1S CVERZED .

LoT om  JHLY 5, Zowo

THLr AEUTTTER
METI i Coasricon EVECE. THAT Wik
A VAELAHCE wos  GEMAMTELD ToEe TS
b ALK WiE LOT ASSocisayiEn WITR

WE RERUEST PERMuSSiad
wil L HEeERf

we THE LT eSS BEEN USED &0
I~ FOEMETL PpoTony  POROSS THWE STEEST .
T CoMTIMUE TEr © 2 USE 17T AS A PALK-IME Lo Wiich
> PLLEVATE A SHORTAGE GF TAZKEIMHE AT NEPESY MPAETMENTS .
2. If the variance were granted, the spirit of the ordinance would be observed because:

THE 2 A il Lot wWioltil DERVICE MNEIGHECE (vig, LSV AT

BuUltwmiess THECE B  BESE b ASsocirren &5 ZES) SENUAL

LASE

3. Granting the variance would do substantial justice because:
THE  PAMZ s Lol Wil a0 i OoFF STikeer Pk s

=S P OoCES 7w THES MEST €0 ByoE oo .

4. If the variance were granted, the values of the surrounding properties would not be diminished

because
TYET Pk ke e Wikl B L\ Leret> WimH FERC AL

PdeDd L AT P FLA s WA R WILL L RAaFEoUVE.
THE sk E™ETY PaevED LaT

K:ZBA\Web_Forms\Variance_Application_2010.doc 6/6/2017

Page 37 of 39



5. Unnecessary Hardship

A. Owing to special conditions of the property that distinguish it from other properties in the area,
denial of the variance would result in unnecessary hardship because:

i. No fair and substantial relationship exists between the general public purposes of the
ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the property because:
THIS 1= &~ MOMN- Comfoaii Imidé.  Bllotzivadé LT por 4 ’ (=T SF.
THE: A4 o M A Ler SlIZeE 15 ool = F.
STEE Lesm SIZE  Av i Lo asviorsl Mears T 2RiFECuULT T
Bulee ond .o
THE PP DELCD LIS (V. BE. ASsiod) Aot v W i T e

[ (P2 DE MSTTY FRED  ESITr e~ L () e

and
ii. The proposed use is a reasonable one because:
i o= Tre PAEST L] S o P~ BMAAL COlE e =T
A STRCICTULR & B T O TR Lo W/ ot L > e R TG

TR A S 8T ST P = A ~ DIFEC Lie=7 COoCT T

B. Explain how, if the criteria in subparagraph (A) are not established, an unnecessary hardship will be
deemed to exist if, and only if, owing to special conditions of the property that distinguish it from other
properties in the area, the property cannot be reasonably used in strict conformance with the ordinance,
and a variance is therefore necessary to enable a reasonable use of it.

EERY= Lot = LR ERZ B2 v s R e S R o MAEET

THE AeA phedt et LA R Eoid b v & 2 a2 EhAENT 3B

K:ZBA\Web_Forms\Variance_Application_2010.doc 6/6/2017

Page 38 of 39



WATER STREET

1" IRON PM-\
0.3’ DOWN
S E et
BASE 1. ) 7 HicH X 3 WOE
WN" .
EANG ENTRANCE 2 HiGH X 3 WOE
WOOD PLANTER
(TP)

PAVEMENT
— DR
o /7
0N ‘
- R= 16.00, E
| o 15&"
b
%
&
K7
£STNG \ :
- : £
: !
: Iap!
3 5%
z ] ‘
A E
; EXISTING W
pAVED PARKING
11 PROPOSED
PARKING SPACES
‘-&._._-_-_-_ -‘-.‘.'_.-.-
—— _‘_‘_"_‘_‘. ‘-v‘—‘-
1/2° IRON Rw/
FLUSH
SpIKE SET A
BASE 05 pRopOSED POST A0 B
CHAIN FENCE [
40" HieH : o
i
/
II
P
age 39 of 39 | )
/ R
[ 1
/
L-"‘-.



	SKMBT_C454e17072117350.pdf
	06.05.2017 DRAFT minutes-Chair clean copy.pdf
	UZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
	UMEETING MINUTES

	Blank Page

	Blank Page



